

### District 11NR Board & Staff Meeting Minutes Wednesday 15 September, 2021 1900 PDT Webinar

Call to Order: 1902 hours by DCO Dean McFarren

**Roll Call:** By Georgie Scheuerman. Present were: CDR Paige Keenan; COMO Dean McFarren, DCO; Curtis Han, DCOS; COMO Mary Kirkwood, IPDCO, DNACO PACAREA; Alan Stanton, DCAPT; Nancy Marion, DCAPT; Bruce Martin, DCAPT; COMO Dale Fajardo, DCDR; Michael Brown, DCDR; Chuck Cobery, DCDR; Tony Zocchi, DCDR; Phil Mammano, DCDR; Dock Pierce, DCDR; Bryce Leinan, DCDR; Jim Losi, P-PCA

A quorum was present to conduct business.

Guests:

Attendance is reported in Addendum A.

### **Approval of Meeting Minutes:**

• August 2021: COMO Dean McFarren made motion to approve. Chuck Cobery seconded. Minutes approved.

### **District Board & Staff Reports:**

**DCDR 1** COMO Dale Fajardo – Rpt on File: Dale reported that the Div 1 OPTREX is moved to Oct 3<sup>rd</sup>. It will be only on-the-water training and Comms training at Station San Francisco. He extended a Bravo Zulu to Flotilla 01-09 with 6 new members.

**DCDR 3** Russ Kaiser – Rpt on File: Russ was excused. Don Anderson (VCDR Div 3) reported the Aug 14th OPTREX went well. He noted Div 3 plus a flotilla received the NACO 3 Star Award. It's been a good year for PE in Div 3 with 77 students. More classes are scheduled. Division elections will be on Oct 14<sup>th</sup>. PA events are scheduled for Sept 25<sup>th</sup>. Completed all Bridges and PATONs.

**DCDR 4** Michael Brown – Rpt on File: Michael asked for questions. Got none. He had nothing to add to his report.

**DCDR 5** Lew Derfuss – Rpt on File: Lew was excused. Ingemar Olsson (VCDR Div 5) reported the division is preparing for elections. Many programs are continuing. Had Aug 5<sup>th</sup> meeting online. Continuing to check on members' health. Had a mini-OPTREX and Flotilla 5-5 will have an OPTREX on Sept 24-26<sup>th</sup>. Getting set up for Fleet Week. Div 5 COW is scheduled for Dec 5<sup>th</sup>.

**DCDR 6** Chuck Cobery – Rpt on File: Chuck reported Div 6 completed their OPTREX. One OTO and one QE were present with 13 members being requaled. The OPTREX went very well.

**DCDR 7** Tony Zocchi – Rpt on File: Tony reported Div 7 had a very successful OPTREX. Had members requaling and 2 new crew. Upcoming is the Div 7 COW.

**DCDR 8** Phil Mammano – Rpt on File: Phil reported Mendocino Flotilla supports State Park Light House and Fuel Farm. OPTREX done at Whiskey Town with 9 requaled.

**DCDR 10** Dock Pierce – Rpt on File: Dock reported elections and staff development are underway. He noted member Ted Cooper has been an Auxiliary Member for 50 years.

**DCDR 11** Bryce Leinan – Rpt on File: Bryce extended a Bravo Zulu to Div 7. Div 11 has had quite a bit of activity because of the fire. Several members were evacuated. Some members received support from Station Lake Tahoe. But members are now back home. Bryce reported there's an event on the Lake on Sunday. He also noted Div 11 is working on elections.

**DCDR 12** Greg Olsen – Rpt on File: Greg was excused. Georgie Scheuerman (VCDR Div 12) reported the division and flotillas are preparing for elections. The Div 12 OPTREX is scheduled for October 15 & 16. Also there are several new members in the division.

**PPCA:** Jim Losi – Rpt on File: Jim Losi reported things are very busy. Unfortunately 2 members have crossed the bar. The PCA Fair will be online on Saturday, focusing on Leadership. Jim shared some details for the PCA Fair. He also noted we'll be filming the AUX Memorial Ceremony on Nov 6<sup>th</sup>. Jim thanked everyone for their work on the PCA Fair.

**IPDCO:** Mary Kirkwood: COMO Kirkwood reminded us about vetting candidates for elections. AUX National Items: Cancelled NACON due to the spike in the Pandemic. Will do some virtual meetings on Oct 23 & 24. Directorates will be reporting on the 23<sup>rd</sup>. The 24<sup>th</sup> is the Board meeting. Some National Awards will be presented. Meetings are open to everyone. N-TRAIN is scheduled for Jan 23-30. Could have 11 C-Schools at N-Train.

**DIRAUX:** CDR Paige Keenan: CDR Keenan extended a thank you to everyone for planning the PCA Fair and the AUX Memorial. She noted we can have small in-person meetings. We need to submit the Mass Gathering and Risk Assessment forms into DIRAUX. She also noted we're still in Phase III. Oct 1 to Nov 15<sup>th</sup> is the Finance Blackout with no reimbursements until mid Nov at the earliest. Changes are being put into place for both the finance and travel systems. If there are hardships because of this, let DIRAUX know. Coast Guard Mutual Assistance can help if members are put into a difficult position because of not receiving reimbursements during this period of time. CDR Keenan commented on elections and waivers. If waivers are needed, please route the waiver request through our Auxiliary Chain Of Leadership and then to the DIRAUX shared box with specifics on the waiver request. She also noted that the federal requirement for vaccines does not apply to the Auxiliary at this time.

OTO: BOSN2 Dustin Finkelson: BOSN2 Finkelson was excused.

Curtis Han: DSO Reports: Curtis thanked the staff for their reports.

# DCAPT Prevention Alan Stanton DCAPT-

<u>Wil Sumner DSO-MS</u> – Rpt on File. Wil reported MS is doing well. Many divisions setting up beach cleanup committees that are planning and then will be doing beach cleanups. Working with National on PQS for Uninspected Commercial Fishing Vessels. Wil did a shout out to those doing MS missions. Currently have 1279 hours working with the Coast Guard.

<u>Jane Smith DSO-PA</u> - Rpt on File: Jane reported she had nothing to add to her report. Asked leadership to encourage reporting on activities. Will do a PA class in January. Wants divisions to share some pictures from OPTREX.

<u>Mike Thompson DSO-PV</u> - Rpt on File: Mike was excused. Alan noted there are good links in his report. <u>Michael Hay DSO-NS</u> - Rpt on File: Michael reported on bridges and noted emphasis on Class 1 and Class 2 PATONs which are being handled. Bridges are at 48 of 50 completed. PATONS also getting completed. Michael noted the sun setting of raster carts from NOAA, now going to electronic charts. <u>Sean Harvey DSO-PE</u> – Rpt on File: Sean reported continuing to get instructors out of REWK. Noted he conducted a Train the Trainer Class.

Mike Lauro DSO-VE - Rpt on File: Mike was not present.

**DCAPT Response** Nancy Marion DCAPT – Nancy thanked staff for their reports.

<u>Larry Olson DSO-AV</u> – Rpt on File: Larry was not present. Nancy reported AV is continuing ground school training. Have 5 aircraft available for patrols. Had first Air Squadron dinner.

<u>COMO Wally Smith DSO-OP</u> - Rpt on File: Wally reported that the QE Checkrides report is on the website. 43 members are in REWK status. Asked DCDRs to look at who's in REWK. He also asked that we look for and nurture members. He noted trainees can get a waiver as a guest to get on a patrol without all normally required PPE.

<u>Larry Stanton DSO-CM</u> - Rpt on File: Larry reported that they prepared to send the Auxiliary Communications Vehicle (ACV) towards the fire sites if it was needed. He also noted they had a tire separation on the trailer.

<u>Vinicio Mata DSO-EM</u> – Rpt on File: Vinicio was excused. Bryce Leinan reported most of the activity using Everbridge is to keep track of members in emergency areas and to communicate with them to see if they need help. Bryce extended a Bravo Zulu to those who helped with this effort.

<u>John-Michael Zimmerle DSO-AS</u> –Rpt on File: John-Michael reported AUX Scout is back in operations. Planning winter season, looking for classes and speakers. Oct 23<sup>rd</sup> will be the Sea Scout Safety at Sea event at YBI. Looking for Aux members to help the scouts. Probably will have a cap on the number of participants at this event.

**DCAPT Support & Planning** Bruce Martin DCAPT – Bruce.

BK Barr DSO-CS – Rpt on File: BK was not present.

<u>Linda Haynes DSO-CA</u> – Rpt on File: Linda reported 2 or 3 OPTREX have asked for assistance. Also looking for people for AUX Scouts event.

<u>Robert Aston DSO-IS</u> - Rpt on File: Robert was excused. Rob Firehock reported for Robert. Rob reported on a spread sheet for division's mission hours. New feature in AD2 are preformatted reports. More tools are becoming available.

<u>Ann Zocchi DSO-MT</u> – Rpt on File: Ann reported that links for Core Training and C-Schools are in her report. Updated District Training Calendar will be coming out soon. She thanked all instructors who've been providing this Training online.

<u>Steven Hilt DSO-DV</u> – Rpt on File: Steven was excused. Winnie Zhou (ADSO-DV) was filling in for Steven. She reported DSO and ADSO are working on outreach for older members and members with disabilities. Another goal is to do outreach to all SO-DV.

<u>Jim Losi DSO-HR</u> – Rpt on File: Jim reported that recruiting is remaining strong. Should emphasize reengagement with members. Asked DCDRs to communicate about the upcoming PCA Fair.

<u>Jerry Edelen DSO-MA</u> - Rpt on File: Jerry reported ADSOs are working on the ACV and on Coasties. If you want to use the ACV, contact John Brandenberg.

<u>Greg Schaefer DSO-PB</u> – Rpt on File: Greg was not present. Bruce noted they're looking for articles for the next newsletter.

# Curtis Han - DCOS

<u>Fran Fisher DSO-FN</u> – Rpt on File: Fran wasn't able to report. Curtis noted some finance items are being worked on.

<u>Ricardo Moreno INT REL</u> – Rpt on File. Ricardo reported we had one interpreter engaged in a Maritime Pollution Incident. Also Coast Guard is asking for interpreters with Dari or Pashto language skills to help assist with Afghanistan evacuations.

<u>Georgie Scheuerman DSO-SR</u> – Minutes in. Georgie noted she had nothing to add.

**ASC- SF:** <u>Sue Fry</u>: Rpt on File: Sue reported Sector wants to engage more with the Auxiliary using 2 AUXLOS. Activities with Sector expanded recently. Sector has a new brochure on Fire Prevention. We can distribute these. ICS training is under development. AUX members are helping out with this. Fleet Week preparations are underway. She noted we should get vessel names on the contract list for fueling. **ASC- Humboldt:** <u>Bill Hale</u>: Rpt on File: Bill reported fires have been hindering operations. Continuing to support in any way that they can.

### DCO McFarren: DSO Reports:

<u>Joanna Leighton-Nevesny DSO-L</u>P: Joanna was not present. Rob Firehock noted there is nothing to report.

<u>Neal Nevesny - Civil Rights</u> – Neal was not present.

### Leadership Reports:

### DCOS – Curtis Han:

### I. D11 Request for Forces Update

- a. Total of 60 requests up-to-date. 2 requests were filled since the last update: AIRSTA SAC 2 members resumed standing watches at the Command Duty Stations, after requalifying since the hiatus; 1 member, Renee Thomas was recently certified and designated as Emergency Management Specialist at SECSF will be responsible for planning and training ICS courses to Auxiliarists and Reservists
- b. Total of 38 requests closed; 1 in progress; 21 remain open.
- c. Please encourage your members to update their skills bank information and make sure they are current in Core Training and Risk Management to be considered if opportunities pop up.

### II. Risk Management Initial Training and Refresher Training Reports

- a. Initial RM Training 394/403 members (97.7%, increased from 94.6% in August) who needed Initial Training have successfully completed. Out of 9 members (2.3%) still needing training, 1 FC, 8 are Staff Officers. Bravo Zulu! We're ranked second of five in PACAREA
- b. RM Refresher Training 185/239 members (77.4%) have completed the RM refresher training. Ranked third of five in PACAREA

### **III.** Core Training:

- a. We are currently at 64% (731 of our 1147 members) compliance for Core Training and below the 67% National average for the Auxiliary. We also ranked fourth of five in PACAREA.
  - i. 416 of our 1147 members are not current.

#### IV. AP/IQ Status:

- a. D11N is doing pretty good in moving members out of AP status. Currently we sit at 94 members (8.2%) in AP. The Aux Average is 9.0% and we're #2 of 5 Districts in PACAREA
- b. We currently have 98 members (8.6%) in IQ status. The Aux Average is 4.3% and we're ranked 3<sup>rd</sup> of 5 Districts in PACAREA.
- c. AUXOP we currently have 185 members (16.2%) with AX/AX2 designation. National average is 15.1%, ranked 2<sup>nd</sup> of 5 in PACAREA.

# V. National Safety Update:

a. National Safety Update was provided by COMO Zinner at ASOC class on Monday, 8/23/21. They are still in the process of developing training presentation materials for the District Safety Officers, hopefully be ready by NTRAIN, 2022.

COMO McFarren emphasized the importance of Core Training and Risk Management.

# DCO – Dean McFarren:

# i. We continue to march towards normality:

- 1. As with last month, there currently is NO plan to revert back to a Phase II or other restricted duty but he urged us to remind our members that we all need to follow Reconstitution Plan safety guidance and not let our guard down. Be your shipmate's keeper and help keep our District safe.
- 2. He's heard from a couple members asking if in-person meetings are now prohibited since we had to cancel the in-person PCA Fair.
  - a. This is untrue. In person meetings are still authorized for internal activities such as meetings and training AND external activities such as Public Education classes.
  - b. There is a caveat though. Meetings must be below 50 people to be considered by DIRAUX for approval.
    - i. Also, a mass gathering form must be completed for any new meetings.
    - ii. For repeat meetings, e.g. flotilla meetings, the organizer should review the approved MGF, assess if there are any significant changes, and resubmit ONLY if there are significant changes to the risk or mitigation plans.
- 3. He knows that many Divisions and Flotilla's are seeing a downturn in meeting attendance as we continue to learn how to manage COVID. He'd just like to say that each and every member is important and the work we do is equally important. We can do just about every task we did before COVID... It's important to reinforce that and let our members know that they can return to duty if they so choose.
  - a. Let's be the voice of encouragement and work with our members to get them energized and engaged.

# ii. Wildfires in our AOR - Everbridge

- 1. As you are all aware, we have had massive wildfires burning in Northern and Central California over the past couple of months.
- 2. Our Emergency Management team (Vinny Mata DSO-EM) and Bryce Leinan (DCDR-11, ADSO-EM) have kept tabs on fire progress and Bryce has been providing COMO McFarren with SITREPS on a daily basis during the most extreme times.
- 3. Approximately 12 of our members were evacuated at one time or another in the past weeks but he's very happy and relieved to say that there were no injuries or property damage to our members and all members have since been able to return home.
- 4. Gave a personal shout-out and Bravo Zulu to Chief Fairchild and the crew of Station Lake Tahoe for allowing evacuated Aux members in the Tahoe area to stay at the A-frame cabins free of charge. This is a wonderful example showing that we take care of our own.
- 5. During these wildfire events, we have deployed Everbridge in a limited capacity multiple times to check up on our members. This technology, along with personal phone calls from our local leadership has helped keep us informed and also let our membership know that we're interested in their welfare. Sometimes, it's just good to know that someone is looking in on you.
- 6. Encouraged us, as leaders, to talk up Everbridge, give this example, and urge members to respond to our ongoing system tests.

# iii. Membership Status:

1. Currently at 1141 as of last report on 9/14. Up from 1139 last month at this time (+9 YTD).

- 2. We have recruited 86 new members in 2021 through 9/14 so we're still above our goal trend of 10% for the year.
- 3. Flotilla 01-09 (Coyote Point) is our leading recruiter with 15 new members recruited and Division 01 is still our leading Division with 22 new members in 2021. Bravo Zulu to Flotilla 01-09 and Division 01.
- 4. Survey of members who had left the AUX. Findings: All 22 said they were dissatisfied with us being engaged in our mission due to COVID. 18 said they had not spoken with their FCs.

### **OLD BUSINESS:**

# a. September PCA Fair 18SEPT 21

- i. As everyone knows, we are having an abbreviated PCA Fair Saturday morning
- ii. The theme for Saturday's session is Leadership and Working Together. Hopefully this excites and motivates our members.
- iii. Speakers include CAPT Lam, SSF Commander, NACO Alex Malewski, COMO Kirkwood, and we have two AUC's speaking about their experiences with the active duty.
- iv. The YouTube link has been sent out by the PCA team and we're really hoping we get a good turnout.

# **b.** District Elections

- I. District elections for three DCAPT positions for the 2022 term will be held on September 18<sup>th</sup> @ 13:00pdt.
- II. The election will be held electronically in accordance with AUX-SOP 004A "Election of Unit Officers Through the Use of Electronic Means", ALAUX 023/20 "Auxiliary Election Policy Changes" to ensure all of the voting body have an opportunity to participate.
- III. With this change from paper ballot to electronic voting, and in accordance with the Auxiliary Manual, Commandant Instruction M16790.1 (series), section 4.F.3.c. nominations from the floor are suspended for elections held electronically. Nominations from the floor are not permitted during such elections.
- IV. Meeting links have been sent out to the district board (EXCOM, DCDR's, PPCA) to join the meeting. You must be logged into the meeting to be eligible to vote.
- V. Please make sure your contact information is up to date in ADII as COMO Maddox will be using your email address that is on file to contact you with the balloting information.
- VI. If you know you will not be available, please notify COMO Maddox and your DCAPT ahead of time and let them know who will be representing your Division. 1<sup>st</sup> alternate should be your VDCDR, 2<sup>ND</sup> alternate should be your IPDCDR.
- VII. We have five candidates that have submitted their notice of intent to run to COMO Maddox <u>AND</u> the screening team prior to the 04SEP2021 deadline.
- VIII. All five candidates have been vetted and meet the eligibility requirements contained in AUXMAN Chapter 4 Section F.2. Eligibility and AUXMAN Appendix C.31. Election Eligibility Criteria for District Captains.
  - IX. The candidates are:
    - a. Michael Brown (current Div 4 DCDR)
    - b. Chuck Cobery (current Div 6 DCDR)
    - c. Lew Derfuss (current Div 5 DCDR)
    - d. Bruce Martin (incumbent DCAPT)
    - e. Alan Stanton (incumbent DCAPT)
  - X. Good Luck to all candidates and thank you for choosing to run for District elected office.

### c. Division & Flotilla elections

- i. Divisions and Flotillas will also be conducting their elections electronically, even if you plan to meet in person. As already stated, we need to be thinking "Safety First" and not creating an environment where a voting member is uncomfortable attending a meeting.
- ii. Divisions should have their screening teams in place for elections after the District election and Flotilla's should also either have their teams in place or getting ready to assign.
  - a. Screening teams have a very important job to ensure potential candidates meet the core requirements to hold the office as outlined in AUXMAN.
  - b. Please refer to AUX-SOP 004A "Election of Unit Officers Through the Use of Electronic Means", ALAUX 023/20 "Auxiliary Election Policy Changes" along with your standing rules and the AUXMAN for additional guidance and date requirements.
- iii. Just a reminder, that if your Division or any of the Flotilla elections are contested by two or more candidates, you will be using our approved balloting software. Election Runner for Divisions and Easy Poll for Flotillas.
  - a. If the election is uncontested, a simple voice vote will suffice. Only one Yes vote is sufficient to elect a member if the contest is uncontested.
- iv. Please let your District Captain know at your earliest convenience if your Division or Flotilla elections will be contested or not.
- v. Also, if for some reason a member needs a waiver to run for an elected office or be appointed to office, please make sure they meet the qualifications to hold that office as defined by AUXMAN prior to submitting the request up the Chain of Leadership. CDR Keenan will not grant any waivers for members that do not meet qualifications.
- vi. Send names of elected officers to Ann Zocchi so she can set up Elected Officers Training.

# d. Fleet Week 2021

- i. Still planned for 04-12OCT
- ii. As mentioned, our three Auxiliarist POC's for the event are:
  - a. Michael Brown (shoreside activities)
    - i. Working with SSF AUXLO to find out about 7 opportunities
  - b. Terry Blanchard (underway activities)
    - i. Seven OPFAC's are lined up so far (crews still not fully set.)
  - c. Kevin Sellstrom (Communications)
- iii. Planning continues to occur according to Terry, but there may be a reduced presence or opportunity to tour Naval ships due to COVID concerns. More meetings are scheduled this week.
- iv. Please have your members contact the POC's directly if they would like to participate.
- v. Again, participating members must be current in Core Training, IRM/TCT, have completed Blood Borne Pathogen training, and have High Risk Assessment forms on file with DIRAUX.

### e. DTRAIN 2022

- I. Planned for 25-27MAR2022 (last weekend in March) at the Nugget Resort in Sparks NV.
- II. The contract has been reviewed by Legal and has been signed.
- III. We'll get the planning team together in mid-November for our first meeting.
- IV. Looking forward to hosting an AUXLAMS C-School prior to the weekend.

### **NEW BUSINESS:**

### a. OPCOM/National Board Meeting Scheduled for 23-24OCT2021

- 1. As NACON has been canceled as of 02AUG, National is putting together two days of meetings later this month
- 2. The National Operating Committee (all Aux Programs) Report-out will be on Saturday 23OCT at 10:00pdt.
  - a. The event will be live streamed via YouTube and all are welcome.
  - b. This is a great opportunity to see and hear what is going on in our different program areas and what is coming down the pike.
- 3. The National Board Meeting will be held on Sunday 24OCT also at 10:00pdt and will include an awards ceremony. One of our own, Randy McCormick should be receiving the NACO Diversity Award at that time.

# b. Division Changes of Watch Scheduling

- (1) Currently eight of 10 Divisions have chosen to hold a COW, with four planned in person.
- (2) Just a reminder that current D11 COVID capacity protocols suggest that the maximum number of people present for in-person events is limited to under 50ppl. And of course, the venue maximum size would also need to be taken into consideration. All of this should be contained in your Mass Gathering Form that needs to be submitted to and approved by DIRAUX prior to the event.
- (3) There is only limited information on the District calendar, so DCDR's, please reach out to your DCAPT's and Curtis with Dates, times, locations, UOD, etc.
- (4) Four are planned in person
- (5) CAPT Lam has voiced interest in attending our COW's. We need to get a full schedule to his office ASAP to make sure he or possibly CAPT Baldueza can attend.
- (6) Customarily, the SSF/SHB representative talks a bit about the Division, including how many volunteer hours, major points or milestones in the year. DCDR's, please provide this information to your DCAPT so the Rep has something to congratulate your team on. Please get it in 3 weeks in advance.

# c. Sector San Francisco Fire Brochure

- 1) SSF Sue Fry shared a new brochure created by Sector Prevention staff that covers Fire Safety Tips.
- 2) We should plan is to talk it up and provide copies to get these Fire Safety Tips out to the public.

# d. New Blood Born Pathogen Online Course (ALAUX 031/21)

- 1) An alternative BBP course is available through the CGAUX Online Classroom (the current online class through AUXLMS is still available)
- 2) Members need to take a screen shot of the completion certificate and send through their FSO-IS for input into ADII.
  - a. There is no direct link between the Online Classroom and ADII.

# For the Good of the Auxiliary:

- 50 Year Service Plaque
  - 1) COMO McFarren recognized one of our long-term members, Ted Cooper of Flotilla 10-03, for 50 years of dedicated service to the Coast Guard Auxiliary and D11N.
  - 2) Ted enrolled on 10MAR1971, was a former FSO-PE and just got qualified as a Boat Crew member this year. Bravo Zulu to Ted for being a shining example of Auxiliary dedication.
- Streaming B&S Meetings: COMO McFarren is thinking about streaming our Board & Staff Meetings to do outreach to members. He asked if anyone had any issues with this. Bryce Leinan noted the meeting would be automatically recorded doing this. It was asked if there are any security concerns about streaming. Bryce noted the link for the meeting is not listed outside of the

Aux membership. COMO McFarren thanked everyone for the good discussion. He'll work with Bryce to get YouTube set up for the October B&S Meeting. Board &Staff should use the GoToMeeting link not YouTube.

Adjourn: With no further comment or discussion, DCO McFarren adjourned the meeting at 2119.

Next Meeting: October 20, 2021 at 1900 PDT, Webinar

Respectfully Submitted by: Georgie Scheuerman, DSO-SR

#### ADDENDUM A: District Board, Staff Officers and Guests Present

DIRAUX: CDR Paige Keenan COMO Dean McFarren DCO COMO Mary Kirkwood IPDCO, DNACO PACAREA Chief of Staff Curtis Han DCAPT Prevention: Alan Stanton DCAPT Response: Nancy Marion DCAPT Support & Planning: Bruce Martin DCDR 1 – COMO Dale Fajardo; DCDR 3 -DCDR 4 – Michael Brown; DCDR 5 -DCDR 6 – Chuck Cobery; DCDR 7 – Tony Zocchi DCDR 10 – Dock Pierce DCDR 8 – Phil Mammano; DCDR 11 – Bryce Leinan; DCDR 12 -P-PCA – Jim Losi DSO's in attendance: DSO-AS - John-Michael Zimmerle DSO-AV -DSO-CA – Linda Haynes DSO-CM - Larry Stanton DSO-CS -DSO-DV -DSO-EM -DSO-FN – Fran Fisher (present but unable to get her microphone to work) DSO-HR - Jim Losi DSO-IS -DSO-LP -DSO-MA – Jerry Edelen DSO-MS – Wil Sumner DSO-MT – Ann Zocchi DSO-NS – Michael Hay DSO-OP – COMO Wally Smith DSO-PA - Jane Smith DSO-PB-DSO-PE - Sean Harvey DSO-PV -DSO-SR – Georgie Scheuerman DSO-VE -

CRC -ASC SF: Sue Fry ASC H: Bill Hale Int Rel – Ricardo Moreno

Guests: COMO Mike Maddox, Rob Firehock, Jim Duncan, Ingemar Olsson, Don Anderson